



## **HLPF Study Guide**



# HIGH-LEVEL POLITICAL FORUM ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Topic A: Realistically Redefining the 2030's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

Topic B: Using Nuclear Energy as an Alternative to Fossil Fuels





#### CHAIR LETTER

Dear Delegates,

We are pleased to welcome you to the High-Level Political Forum (HLPF) Committee, where we are set to delve into two pivotal topics that hold the key to our global future.

The 2030 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) guide our aspirations toward a fairer and more sustainable world. Our task in the first topic is to pragmatically redefine these goals to make them achievable amidst evolving challenges. We will brainstorm ways to drive genuine progress and build a brighter future for all.

In the second topic, we encounter an urgent question as the world grapples with environmental concerns: can nuclear energy be a sustainable alternative to fossil fuels? It is a complex issue with far-reaching implications. Together, we will weigh the advantages and disadvantages, examine safety measures, and consider their role in ensuring our planet's energy needs while minimizing environmental impact.

We are thrilled to facilitate these discussions and witness the innovative solutions that will undoubtedly arise from this assembly of brilliant minds.

Feel free to contact us for questions, guidance, or discussions.

Best regards,

Asaf Buzy | asafbuzy@gmail.com | 058-6405080

Michal Markowski | michalmar006@gmail.com | 054-7057796

Gal Etrog | galetrog28@gmail.com | 058-6916512







## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chair Letter	2
Table of Contents	3
Introduction to the Committee	5
Topic A: Realistically Redefining the 2030's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)	5
Background to the Issue	5
Overview	5
A History of SDGs	7
Current Situation	8
The Impact of the SDGs	8
Criticisms and Controversies	10
Conclusion	11
Questions to Consider	11
Bibliography	12
Topic B: Using nuclear energy as an alternative to fossil fuels	13
Background to the Issue	13
Overview	13
Nuclear Energy	13
History of the Use of Fossil Fuels	14
The Greenhouse Effect	14
Carbon Footprints	15
Past Actions of the UN	15
The Chernobyl Disaster	17
Public Concerns	17
Conclusion	18
Current situation	18
Examining the Current Effects of Burning Fossil Fuels	19





The

Governments and Fossil Fuels	. 23
Advantages and Challenges in Developing Countries	. 24
Accessibility of Fossil Fuels	. 24
Initiatives and Progress	. 25
Conclusion	. 25
Questions to Consider	. 25
Bibliography	. 26





## **INTRODUCTION TO THE COMMITTEE**

The High-Level Political Forum on Sustainable Development, often abbreviated as HLPF, is a pivotal global platform for monitoring, reviewing, and accelerating progress toward achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Established in the wake of the 2012 United Nations Conference on Sustainable Development (Rio+20), the HLPF convenes annually under the auspices of the United Nations Economic and Social Council (ECOSOC). Its primary mandate is to assess the implementation of the SDGs and promote a shared commitment among nations to address the world's most pressing challenges.

The HLPF is emblematic of the international community's recognition of the urgent need for coordinated global efforts to tackle issues such as poverty, inequality, climate change, environmental degradation, and economic growth. As a forum that brings together governments, civil society organizations, the private sector, and other stakeholders, the HLPF fosters dialogue, knowledge-sharing, and accountability in pursuing sustainable development. HLPF promotes progress toward a more equitable, sustainable, and prosperous world by facilitating dialogue and cooperation among diverse stakeholders. A: Realistically Redefining the 2030's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

#### **BACKGROUND TO THE ISSUE**

#### **OVERVIEW**

On September 25, 2015, the United Nations passed resolution A/RES/70/1 in which they adopted 17 Sustainable Development Goals (The SDGs), also known as the Global Goals, as a universal call to action to end poverty, protect the planet and ensure that by 2030 all people enjoy peace and prosperity. These 17 goals include 169 associated targets and address a broader range of issues, including economic, social, and environmental dimensions of sustainability.

The significance of the SDGs goes beyond the surface level, as they address not only climate change but also other global issues, such as the eradication of world hunger; in so doing, it involves assisting specific communities and individuals in need. A primary SDG's need arises from the stark inequalities in living conditions and opportunities observed across different regions and populations. While wealth and resources are concentrated in some parts of the world, poverty and deprivation persist in others. Consequently, the SDGs call for collaborative efforts to reduce these inequalities within and between countries. Furthermore, humanitarian and health crises are





influenced by the SDGs. Disparities in access to healthcare, insufficient nutrition, and preventable diseases are prevalent worldwide. The SDGs, with objectives such as "Good Health and Wellbeing" and "Zero Hunger," aspire to enhance global health outcomes and ensure that eve can enjoy a healthy life.

#### The SDGs can be divided into four different categories.

#### 1. Social Development

SDG 1: No Poverty

SDG 2: Zero Hunger

SDG 3: Good Health and Well-being

SDG 4: Quality Education

SDG 5: Gender Equality

## 2. Economic Development

SDG 6: Clean Water and Sanitation

SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy

SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth

SDG 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure

SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities

SDG 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities

SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production

#### 3. Environmental Sustainability

SDG 13: Climate Action

SDG 14: Life Below Water

SDG 15: Life on Land





#### 2. <u>Cross-cutting Themes</u>

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and Strong Institutions (also falls under the category of Social Development)

SDG 17: Partnerships for the Goals (Also falls under Social Development)

#### A HISTORY OF SDGS

Over the years, the UN has undertaken various initiatives to address the environmental crisis of climate change. This led to increased awareness of the potential consequences of climate change in the 1960s and 1970s, driven by early scientific research highlighting the effects of CO<sub>2</sub> emissions. A pivotal moment occurred in 1988 with establishment of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), which provided a platform to comprehensively evaluate climate change's scientific evidence and impact, raising global awareness.

The turning point in addressing climate change came in 1992 during the Rio Earth Summit, which led to the birth of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). This convention laid the groundwork for future international climate negotiations and acknowledged the urgent need to address the climate crisis on a global scale. Subsequently, in 1997, the Kyoto Protocol marked a significant milestone by introducing legally binding emission-reduction targets for developed nations, demonstrating the international community's commitment to mitigating climate change.

In 2000, the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs)— were the precursor to the SDGs. Their priority aimed at critical global challenges by setting eight specific, time-bound targets. These goals primarily concentrated on social and economic issues, such as poverty reduction, gender equality, maternal health, and environmental sustainability, to a limited extent. The MDGs were characterized by a universal approach, where all countries, regardless of their development status, were called upon to work toward the same global targets. This approach did not adequately account for the different capacities of developed and developing nations and responsibilities, being partially effective in galvanizing worldwide action and progress. They led to significant achievements, such as reductions in extreme poverty and improvements in child mortality rates. However, critics argue that the MDGs had shortcomings in addressing the root causes of poverty and inequality, and progress was uneven across different goals and regions.





In the following years, as the climate crisis continued to escalate, annual Conferences of the Parties (COP) under the UNFCCC were convened. These gatherings provided a platform for nations to negotiate and advance climate agreements. This came to a head in 2015 when the Paris Agreement was adopted during COP21 when nearly all nations agreed to limit global warming to 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels. Simultaneously, the adoption of the SDGs in 2015 integrated climate action into a broader sustainable development framework, emphasizing the interconnectedness of environmental, social, and economic challenges on a global scale.

The SDGs represent a more comprehensive and ambitious framework than the MDGs (which they replaced). The SDGs embrace versatility and the principle of Common but Differentiated Responsibility (CBDR). Universality means that all countries are called upon to contribute to achieving their goals, recognizing that global challenges require collective action; whereas acknowledging that all countries share the responsibility for sustainable development, developed nations have more significant historical commitment and capacity to support developing countries in their efforts.

#### **CURRENT SITUATION**

#### THE IMPACT OF THE SDGS

The positive outcomes of the SDGs in most related fields are readily apparent. Notably, 43 nations have joined forces to address gender-based violence (outlined in SDG 5), signaling a shared dedication to nurturing safer and more inclusive societies. Efforts to promote gender equality and empower women have gained momentum due to the SDGs. Policies and programs addressing gender disparities in education, employment, and decision-making have yielded positive results. By emphasizing the importance of gender equality, the SDGs have encouraged societies to work towards a more inclusive and equitable future.

Furthermore, essential health services (SDG 3) have been extended to 71 million individuals across 36 countries, enhancing access to crucial resources. Labor market measures (SDG 8) have also proven effective, safeguarding one million jobs and ensuring economic stability for numerous individuals and families. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, a commendable sum of 1.6 billion US dollars has been raised to support countries' response efforts, illustrating global solidarity.

In the domain of inclusive and effective democratic governance (SDG 16), the impact is equally remarkable. The expansion of democratic participation is exemplified by registering 38 million new





voters across 30 countries, emphasizing the significance of ensuring that voices are heard in the democratic process. Efforts to combat radicalization have also received support, with 26 countries formulating action plans to address this urgent concern. Furthermore, a significant leap into the digital age has been made, as 82 nations have adopted over 580 digital solutions for e-commerce and e-governance, streamlining processes and improving accessibility.

Regarding resilience building (SDG 7), the positive impact resonates through various initiatives. A substantial 2.4 million rural households in 33 countries have gained access to clean, affordable, and sustainable energy sources, leading to improved living conditions and enhanced environmental sustainability. The UNDP's Accelerator Labs Network has extended its reach to an impressive 115 countries, fostering innovation and problem-solving on a global scale. Furthermore, the mobilization of US\$3.8 billion through innovative SDG bonds demonstrates a commitment to financing sustainable development goals. Three million people across 29 countries have witnessed improved livelihoods and greater employment opportunities in crisis or post-crisis settings, highlighting resilience and recovery efforts. These collective impacts underscore the progress and dedication to advancing sustainable development, inclusive governance, and resilience on a global scale.

Another notable achievement spurred by the SDGs is the global transition towards renewable energy sources (SDGs 7 and 13). Governments and private sector entities have recognized the imperative of combating climate change and have invested significantly in renewable energy projects. Ambitious renewable energy targets and supportive policies have been put in place to reduce carbon emissions and mitigate the effects of climate change.

Significant strides have been made in expanding access to education and improving healthcare services in numerous regions. The SDGs have driven initiatives to enhance educational opportunities and healthcare infrastructure. These improvements have contributed to human capital development and overall well-being, bringing the world closer to achieving critical SDG targets related to health and education.

One significant impact of the SDGs has been promoting multi-stakeholder collaboration and partnerships. Governments, businesses, civil society organizations, academic institutions, and the general public have formed innovative alliances and networks. These collaborations have facilitated resource-sharing and encouraged the exchange of best practices and innovative solutions, amplifying the collective impact of sustainable development initiatives.





To translate the global vision of the SDGs into tangible action, many countries have developed National Action Plans (NAPs) specifically tailored to their unique circumstances. These NAPs serve as comprehensive roadmaps for implementing the SDGs, aligning national policies, budgets, and strategies with the specific targets outlined in the goals. By doing so, nations can ensure coherent and coordinated efforts towards achieving sustainable development within their borders.

#### **CRITICISMS AND CONTROVERSIES**

The SDGs have garnered widespread support as a crucial global development framework, but they are not without their critiques and limitations. Critics point out the SDGs' complexity and ambiguity, with their 17 goals and 169 targets often overlapping and challenging to prioritize effectively. This complexity can lead to confusion and difficulties in resource allocation for governments and organizations striving to meet these objectives. This is particularly problematic in low-income and developing nations.

Additionally, the absence of binding enforcement mechanisms raises concerns about accountability and the genuine commitment of nations to implement the goals. While the SDGs emphasize voluntary responsibilities from member states, it remains uncertain whether countries will take concrete actions to achieve the targets they have set for themselves.

Critics argue that the SDGs insufficiently address systemic inequalities and social equity issues, such as racial and gender inequities. While Goal 10 (Reduced Inequality) calls for reducing income inequality, it may not comprehensively tackle issues like education, healthcare, and economic opportunities, which are pivotal for sustainable development.

Furthermore, the SDGs sometimes lack integration with other international agreements and initiatives. This can lead to conflicting priorities and policy decisions. For instance, trade policies prioritizing economic growth over environmental sustainability (Goal 12 - Responsible Consumption and Production) may not align seamlessly with SDG objectives.

It's also essential to acknowledge that geopolitical conflicts and tensions can impede international cooperation, hindering SDG progress. In particular, Goal 16 (Peace, Justice, and Strong Institutions) may face limitations in regions affected by armed conflicts, where achieving peace and security remains an ongoing challenge. In such contexts, addressing the root causes of conflict and promoting strong governance institutions can be exceptionally challenging.





Moreover, regions grappling with conflicts and political instability face distinct challenges in advancing the SDGs. Sustainable development progress relies on peacebuilding efforts and the establishment of political stability as foundational prerequisites. These conditions make initiating and sustaining development initiatives and infrastructure improvements easier.

Some countries contend with significant policy and institutional gaps, which hinder the effective implementation of the SDGs. The absence of robust governance structures, transparency deficits, and shortcomings in accountability mechanisms impede progress toward the goals. Overcoming these challenges necessitates strengthening institutional capacities and reinforcing the rule of law.

#### **CONCLUSION**

While the Sustainable Development Goals have catalyzed global action and fostered positive change in various areas, persistent challenges require continued dedication and innovative solutions. Strengthening partnerships, addressing funding gaps, promoting inclusive development, and mitigating climate change impacts are crucial steps to accelerate progress towards achieving the SDGs by 2030. The collective effort of governments, businesses, civil society, and individuals is necessary to create a more sustainable and equitable world for current and future generations. It is up to you, the delegates, to rise to these challenges and develop solutions that will stand the test of time.

## **QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER**

- 1. How does your country envision the process of redefining the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals to address current global challenges better?
- 2. What areas or aspects of the existing SDGs must be reconsidered or modified to ensure greater effectiveness and relevance?
- 3. In light of the evolving global landscape, how can the international community tomorrow advance along the path of SDSs?
- 4. How does your country propose balancing the ambitious nature of the SDGs with the need for feasible and realistic implementation strategies?
- 5. What role do you see cross-sectoral partnerships playing in the redefined SDGs, and how can countries ensure these partnerships are successful?
- 6. Considering the criticisms and challenges outlined in the study guide, how can the redefined SDGs address funding, inequality, and accountability more effectively?





#### **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

The Sustainable Development Goals, the United Nations-https://sdgs.un.org/goals

Criticism of the Sustainable Development Goals, ResearchGate-

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/285199196 The Trouble with the Sustainable Development Goals

Van Loon, Hans. "The Role of Private (International) Law in Achieving the Sustainable Development Goals." In Reimagining the International Legal Order, edited by Vesselin Popovski and Ankit Malhotra. Abingdon: Routledge, 2023. (forthcoming).

https://nvvn.nl/promote-peaceful-and-inclusive-societies-for-sustainable-development-provide-access-to-justice-for-all-and-build-effective-accountable-and-inclusive-institutions-at-all-levels/

http://moud.gov.in/policies/servicelevel





## TOPIC B: USING NUCLEAR ENERGY AS AN ALTERNATIVE TO FOSSIL FUELS

#### **BACKGROUND TO THE ISSUE**

#### **O**VERVIEW

From the electricity that lights our homes to the cars we drive to work, modern life has been built upon the foundations of fossil fuels, such as coal, oil, and natural gas. These energy sources have powered our societies and economies for decades, fueling industrialization and technological advancement. However, there is a growing awareness that our heavy reliance on fossil fuels comes at an immense cost. The combustion of these resources contributes to climate change and a slew of pollutants that have far-reaching and detrimental effects on human health. These consequences include early death, heart attacks, respiratory disorders, stroke, asthma, etc. Alarmingly, a study conducted by Harvard University in collaboration with the University of Birmingham, the University of Leicester, and University College London unveiled an even grimmer truth: more than 8 million people worldwide lost their lives in 2018 due to fossil fuel pollution. This staggering number paints a distressing picture, indicating that air pollution from burning fossil fuels is responsible for approximately one in every five deaths across the globe.

Amid this pressing concern for the environment and public health, the pursuit of cleaner and more sustainable alternatives to fossil fuels has gained significant traction. Among these alternatives, nuclear energy has emerged as a viable and promising candidate; however, it's not that simple.

#### **NUCLEAR ENERGY**

Nuclear energy harnesses the power of atomic reactions to generate electricity. Unlike fossil fuels, nuclear energy production does not produce greenhouse gas emissions, making it an attractive option for mitigating climate change. Moreover, nuclear power plants operate reliably and can provide a steady source of electricity, reducing the fluctuations associated with renewable energy sources like wind and solar. This reliability is especially crucial as we seek to transition away from fossil fuels while maintaining a stable energy supply.

However, nuclear energy is not without its challenges and controversies. Concerns about nuclear accidents, nuclear waste disposal, and the potential for atomic proliferation have led to heated debates about its safety and long-term viability. Nevertheless, experts argue that advancements in





reactor technology, safety protocols, and waste management techniques may mitigate these concerns.

In this study guide, we will delve into the concept of nuclear energy, dissecting its potential as a crucial alternative to fossil fuels. Atomic energy presents unique advantages and challenges, offering a glimpse into a future where clean, reliable, and efficient power generation is not only possible but imperative for the well-being of our planet and its inhabitants. As we weigh the pros and cons of nuclear energy, we will navigate the complex landscape of energy production, striving to find a path that leads to a sustainable and healthier future for all.

#### HISTORY OF THE USE OF FOSSIL FUELS

Fossil fuels can be traced back thousands of years ago when Earth civilizations utilized coal for heating and cooking. However, the widespread exploitation of fossil fuels, including coal, oil, and natural gas, began during the Industrial Revolution in the late 18th century and marked a transformative shift as coal became the primary energy source for steam engines, powering factories, and locomotives. The subsequent discovery and utilization of oil in the mid-19th century and natural gas in the early 20th century further accelerated the global reliance on fossil fuels.

In the 20th century, we have witnessed a remarkable surge in fossil fuel consumption, powering the growth of industries, transportation, and urbanization. Fossil fuels fueled economic expansion and played a pivotal role in geopolitical conflicts and power dynamics. However, as environmental and climate impacts of fossil fuel use became increasingly evident, concerns about air pollution, greenhouse gas emissions, and resource depletion began to lead to growing efforts to transition towards cleaner and more sustainable energy sources in the 21st century.

#### THE GREENHOUSE EFFECT

The greenhouse effect is a natural phenomenon crucial for maintaining Earth's temperature at a level suitable for life. It involves the interaction of certain gases, known as greenhouse gases, with solar radiation and outgoing infrared radiation from the Earth's surface.

#### Here's How it Works

Solar radiation from the sun enters the Earth's atmosphere. Some of this incoming solar radiation is absorbed by the Earth's surface, warming it. The Earth's surface then emits infrared radiation (heat) back into the atmosphere. Greenhouse gases, such as carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4),





and water vapor (H2O), present in the atmosphere, absorb and re-radiate some of this infrared radiation. This process traps heat within the Earth's atmosphere, effectively acting like a "blanket," which keeps the planet's temperature within a range suitable for life.

However, human activities, especially burning fossil fuels, have significantly increased the concentration of greenhouse gases in the atmosphere. This enhanced greenhouse effect results in the Tramore heat-trapping to global warming and climate change.

#### **CARBON FOOTPRINTS**

A carbon footprint is a measure of the total greenhouse gas emissions, primarily carbon dioxide (CO2) but also including other gases like methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O), associated with an individual, organization, event, or product over a specific period. It quantifies the impact of human activities on climate change.

**Direct Emissions** These are emissions released directly from activities or sources under one's control. For individuals, this includes emissions from driving a car, heating a home, or air travel. For organizations, it encompasses emissions from their operations, such as manufacturing or energy use.

**Indirect Emissions** are associated with consuming goods and services but occur upstream in the supply chain. They include emissions from the production and transportation of the products we buy and the energy used in the buildings where we work and shop.

Reducing one's carbon footprint involves minimizing or offsetting these emissions through various means, such as using cleaner energy sources, adopting energy-efficient technologies, reducing waste, and supporting reforestation and renewable energy projects. Understanding and managing carbon footprints are essential in mitigating climate change and transitioning to a more sustainable and low-carbon future.

#### PAST ACTIONS OF THE UN

The United Nations (UN) has played a pivotal role in advocating for sustainable and clean energy sources, including nuclear energy, as an alternative to fossil fuels. Some key past actions and initiatives by the UN in this matter are presented below.

#### 1. United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC)





Established in 1992, it is one of the most significant international agreements addressing climate change. It sets the framework for global efforts to combat climate change and stabilize greenhouse gas concentrations in the atmosphere.

#### 2. The UNFCCC's Annual Conference of the Parties (COP)

COP meetings have discussed the role of nuclear energy in mitigating climate change. While nuclear power is not explicitly mentioned in the Convention, it has been recognized as a low-carbon energy source capable of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Various countries have included nuclear energy in their national climate action plans (Nationally Determined Contributions, or NDCs) submitted as part of their commitments under the UNFCCC.

#### 3. The Clean Air Act

While not directly a UN initiative, the Clean Air Act of 1963 in the United States is an example of domestic legislation aimed at addressing air pollution, including emissions from fossil fuel combustion. The UN has recognized the importance of clean air and the detrimental effects of air pollution on public health and the environment. Efforts to reduce air pollution align with the broader goals of mitigating climate change and transitioning to cleaner energy sources like nuclear power.

#### 4. Net Zero Coalition

The Net Zero Coalition is a collaborative initiative that brings together countries and organizations committed to achieving net-zero greenhouse gas emissions by mid-century. This ambitious goal necessitates a significant shift from fossil fuels to low-carbon and renewable energy sources.

While the coalition does not focus exclusively on nuclear energy, it acknowledges the role of various clean energy technologies, including nuclear power, in achieving net-zero emissions.

#### 5. Relevant UN Resolutions and Treaties

Various UN resolutions and treaties have emphasized transitioning to clean, sustainable energy sources to address climate change. For example, UN General Assembly resolutions often emphasize reducing greenhouse gas emissions and promoting renewable and low-carbon energy technologies.





The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), adopted by the UN in 2015, include Goal 7, which aims to ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable, and modern energy for all. This goal encompasses the promotion of nuclear power alongside other renewable sources.

While the UN has recognized the role of nuclear energy as a potential alternative to fossil fuels in mitigating climate change, it's important to note that the use of atomic power is subject to national policies, regulations, and public opinion. The UN continues to facilitate discussions on nuclear energy in sustainable development and climate action, seeking to balance the need for clean energy with safety and security considerations.

#### THE CHERNOBYL DISASTER

The Chernobyl Disaster was a nuclear accident on 26 April 1986 at the No. 4 reactor in the Chernobyl Nuclear Plant, near Pripyat in the north of the Ukrainian SSR in the Soviet Union. Called the world's worst-ever civil nuclear incident, it is one of only two nuclear energy accidents rated at seven—the maximum severity—on the International Nuclear Event Scale.

During the Chornobyl accident, design flaws, human errors, and safety violations led to an uncontrolled increase in reactor power. The reactor's core overheated and eventually exploded, releasing significant materials, including radioactive isotopes of iodine, cesium, and strontium, into the atmosphere. These radioactive isotopes emit ionizing radiation.

This radiation has enough energy to remove tightly bound electrons from atoms, creating ions. These ions can then interact with biological tissues, potentially causing damage to cells and DNA. It can physically rip apart a human being's DNA. Exposure to high levels of ionizing radiation can lead to acute radiation sickness, various health issues, and an increased risk of developing cancer.

#### **PUBLIC CONCERNS**

Nuclear accidents pose one of atomic energy's most significant concerns and criticisms. High-profile incidents like the Chernobyl disaster 1986 and the Fukushima Daiichi accident 011 have underscored the potential catastrophic consequences of nuclear plant failures. These accidents raise fears regarding the release of harmful radiation, long-term health effects, and environmental contamination. The safety of nuclear power plants is crucial in maintaining public trust and ensuring the protection of nearby communities and the environment. Furthermore, the challenge of nuclear waste management is another top concern regarding atomic energy. Radioactive waste generated by nuclear power plants is hazardous and requires safe and secure long-term storage.





Critics argue that the lack of a permanent disposal solution raises public apprehensions about the safety of handling and storing nuclear waste.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, transitioning from fossil fuels to cleaner energy sources is urgent since the harmful impacts of burning fossil fuels on the environment and human health are evident. While nuclear energy presents several advantages as a zero-emission clean energy source, some valid concerns and criticisms warrant careful consideration and change. The advantage of nuclear power makes it a potential solution to mitigate tons of carbon dioxide emissions, making it a vital player in global efforts to combat climate change.

As society seeks cleaner and more sustainable energy sources, engaging in informed discussions, transparent communication, and continuous research is essential to address the public's concerns and ensure nuclear energy's safe and responsible utilization. Striking a balance between maximizing the benefits of nuclear power while effectively managing its risks will be crucial in shaping the future of global energy policies and transitioning to a greener and more resilient energy landscape.

#### **CURRENT SITUATION**

#### THE ROLE OF FOSSIL FUELS IN CLIMATE CHANGE.

The current global energy landscape stands at a pivotal juncture, holding profound implications for climate change and sustainability. Central to this landscape is the prevailing dominance of fossil fuels in energy production and consumption and their undeniable role in contributing to climate change. According to the United Nations Emissions Gap Report, the combustion of fossil fuels accounts for approximately 76% of global greenhouse gas emissions, primarily carbon dioxide (CO2). This alarming statistic underscores the urgent need to transition to cleaner energy sources.

Fossil fuels, encompassing coal, oil, and natural gas, have long been the primary energy sources for electricity generation, transportation, and industrial processes. Yet, their combustion releases greenhouse gasses such as carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous oxide (N2O) into the atmosphere, exerting a warming effect on the planet. The accumulated emissions of these gasses trap heat, leading to global warming and the disruption of climate patterns.

The consequences of rising global temperatures are becoming increasingly evident as climaterelated disasters, including more frequent and severe heat waves, storms, and rising sea levels,





unfold globally. In 2020, despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the global carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions from fossil fuels and industry were estimated at 31.5 gigatons, according to the Global Carbon Atlas, emphasizing the persistent challenge posed by fossil fuel emissions to climate efforts.

The United Nations has called for global emissions to be reduced by 45% by 2030 compared to 2010 levels and for achieving net-zero emissions by 2050 to limit global warming to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. Most prominently, international agreements and initiatives, the Paris Agreement, underscore the global commitment to limit global warming, aiming to keep it well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels and striving for a 1.5°C target. These efforts necessitate substantial reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and significant scaling up of renewable energy sources. Nations like Sweden and New Zealand have set ambitious goals to phase out fossil fuels entirely and transition to 100% renewable energy sources, showcasing the feasibility of such changes.

As the world undergoes this energy transformation, energy efficiency and conservation play pivotal roles in curbing emissions. Strategies that reduce energy wastage across buildings, transportation, and industrial processes are instrumental in meeting energy demands while diminishing environmental impacts. According to the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), energy efficiency measures can reduce global CO2 emissions by up to 40% by 2050.

Moreover, addressing energy poverty and ensuring equitable access to clean and affordable energy is essential as the world shifts to more sustainable sources. Countries with higher emissions, such as the United States and China, are taking steps to reduce their carbon footprint through increased renewable energy adoption and policy changes. Meanwhile, nations like Iceland and Norway have made significant strides in utilizing renewable energy for electricity and heating.

To conclude, the choices made in the coming years will shape the planet's climate trajectory, with far-reaching implications for present and future generations. The statistics and global efforts outlined above underscore the urgent need for a comprehensive transition from fossil fuels to mitigate climate change and build a sustainable energy future.

#### EXAMINING THE CURRENT EFFECTS OF BURNING FOSSIL FUELS

Firstly, we can observe a pronounced escalation in global temperatures, manifesting as more frequent and severe heat waves, droughts, wildfires, and storms. These consequences of climate change directly impact ecosystems, communities, and economies. Additionally, the rising





temperatures contribute to the melting of polar ice caps and glaciers, raising sea levels and imperiling coastal regions.

Secondly, extreme weather events such as hurricanes, floods, and wildfires have become intensified and more frequent, resulting in substantial economic costs, loss of life, and the displacement of communities. These events underscore the urgency of mitigating fossil fuel-related climate impacts. Furthermore, the disruption of ecosystems is increasingly evident, with biodiversity loss and habitat disruption becoming prevalent, threatening global food security, given that numerous communities rely on natural resources for sustenance and livelihoods.

The adverse health effects of fossil fuel combustion are another critical concern. Air pollution from burning fossil fuels leads to respiratory diseases, cardiovascular problems, and millions of premature deaths annually, according to the World Health Organization (WHO), underscoring the interconnectedness of environmental and human health. Environmental injustices persist, as marginalized communities and low-income populations bear a disproportionate burden of fossil fuel pollution, exacerbating existing socio-economic disparities.

Economically, climate change's costs, including infrastructure damage, healthcare expenses, and loss of agricultural productivity, continue to mount, placing a significant burden on nations worldwide. Most crucially, the continuation of current fossil fuel consumption patterns jeopardizes the well-being and survival of future generations. Global youth are already taking action, demanding immediate and comprehensive measures to safeguard their future.

#### THE ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF NUCLEAR ENERGY

#### Benefits of Using Nuclear Energy

Nuclear energy offers many benefits, making it a compelling option for addressing environmental concerns and mitigating climate change. Firstly, nuclear energy is a zero-emission energy source for electricity, starkly contrasting to fossil fuels. It does not release carbon dioxide or other greenhouse gases into the atmosphere, significantly contributing to global warming and climate change. This characteristic makes nuclear power an essential component of efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and combat climate change.





Furthermore, nuclear energy possesses an unparalleled energy density, meaning that a small amount of nuclear fuel can produce a substantial amount of electricity over an extended period. This efficiency reduces the need for vast fuel, lowering the associated resource extraction and transportation emissions. The energy density of nuclear power is a testament to its environmental efficiency.

Moreover, nuclear power plants can operate continuously, providing a stable and consistent supply of electricity, which contrasts with renewable energy sources like wind and solar, which depend on weather conditions. Nuclear energy complements these intermittent sources, ensuring grid stability and reducing the need for fossil fuel backup, contributing to a more reliable and sustainable energy mix.

Nuclear power also contributes to energy security by diversifying the energy mix. Reliance on various energy sources, including nuclear, reduces vulnerability to disruptions in supply, such as fluctuations in oil prices or geopolitical conflicts, enhancing overall energy security. Additionally, nuclear power plants have a long operational lifespan, often exceeding 40 years, with the possibility of extensions. This longevity improves the return on investment and reduces the need for frequent construction of new power facilities, making it an economically viable and sustainable energy option.

Additionally, nuclear power plants require relatively small land areas compared to many renewable energy installations, like large-scale solar or wind farms. This makes them suitable for areas with limited available land and contributes to efficient land use in energy production. In addition to mitigating greenhouse gas emissions, nuclear power plants emit minimal air pollutants, such as sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides, associated with respiratory problems and environmental damage. This results in improved air quality and public health benefits in regions where nuclear energy is utilized.

Lastly, ongoing advancements in nuclear reactor technology, including advanced designs, safety features, and fuel recycling, are improving the efficiency and safety of nuclear energy. These technological developments open new possibilities for nuclear power to play an even more prominent role in transitioning to a cleaner and more sustainable energy future.

In conclusion, nuclear energy's minimal greenhouse gas emissions, energy density, reliability, and other advantages position it as an asset in the fight against climate change and transitioning to a cleaner and more sustainable energy future. Its numerous benefits contribute to a greener and





healthier planet while providing a crucial component of a diversified energy mix that can help reduce environmental impacts.

#### Risks and Disadvantages

Nuclear energy has substantial risks and disadvantages that must be considered despite its advantages. Nuclear power plants harness the energy produced by the decay of radioactive isotopes to generate electricity, but this process also creates additional radioactive materials. These radioactive substances are enclosed within specialized fuel rods and containment structures to prevent environmental contamination and the release of ionizing radiation, a form of energy that can remove electrons from atoms and molecules, including those found in air, water, and living tissues.

The potential consequences of severe damage to the fuel and containment structures are of paramount concern. Such damage can lead to releasing radioactive materials and ionizing radiation, posing significant health hazards to individuals and the environment. At high doses, ionizing radiation can cause immediate and severe damage to the human body, resulting in conditions like radiation sickness and, in extreme cases, death. Even at lower doses, ionizing radiation can lead to long-term health effects, including cardiovascular disease, cataracts, and an increased cancer risk. The latter arises from the damage inflicted on DNA by ionizing radiation, potentially causing genetic mutations that lead to cancer. Notably, children and adolescents are particularly susceptible to these cancer-causing effects due to their ongoing growth and development, as well as the more significant number of years ahead of them following radiation exposure, increasing the likelihood of cancer development over time.

Beyond health-related concerns, nuclear energy also presents various other challenges. Nuclear accidents, while rare, can have catastrophic consequences, as exemplified by the Chernobyl disaster in 1986 and the Fukushima Daiichi accident in 2011. These events resulted in the release of radioactive materials and long-lasting environmental damage.

Also, nuclear energy relies on uranium as a fuel source, raising concerns about the availability of uranium resources, particularly if nuclear power becomes more widespread. This means that the spread of nuclear technology and materials also raises worries about nuclear weapons proliferation, demanding stringent international safeguards to ensure the peaceful use of nuclear energy and prevent weapons development. Addressing these risks requires robust international non-





proliferation agreements, strict precautions, and proactive measures to ensure that nuclear technology remains exclusively for peaceful purposes.

Additionally, managing and disposing of radioactive nuclear waste represents an enduring challenge. Radioactive materials remain hazardous for millennia, necessitating secure, long-term storage solutions. Establishing repositories capable of safely containing these materials without harming the environment or public health is a pressing concern. Research into advanced waste disposal technologies, such as deep geological repositories, is ongoing.

In conclusion, nuclear energy holds promise as a low-carbon energy source, but it is imperative to recognize and address its multifaceted challenges and concerns. Ensuring safety, effective waste management, non-proliferation efforts, and cost-effectiveness are all vital components of a sustainable nuclear energy future. Responsible development, deployment, and continued research and innovation are essential for harnessing its potential while minimizing associated risks.

#### Dangers of Nuclear Plants

Nuclear power plants, despite their low-carbon energy generation capabilities, are not without their inherent risks and dangers. One of the most significant concerns lies in the potential for accidents at these facilities. History bears witness to the catastrophic consequences of such events, notably the Chernobyl disaster in 1986 and the Fukushima Daiichi accident in 2011. These accidents can potentially result in releasing radioactive materials into the environment, leading to environmental contamination and posing immediate and long-term health risks for nearby populations.

As mentioned, another considerable challenge nuclear energy poses is managing and disposing of nuclear waste. Radioactive waste generated during nuclear energy production comprises materials with extremely long half-lives, necessitating secure storage and safeguarding for thousands of years. Ensuring the safe containment of this waste is an ongoing and complex issue.

#### **GOVERNMENTS AND FOSSIL FUELS**

Numerous governments across the globe have taken bold steps to reduce or eliminate their dependence on fossil fuels. Among these, Sweden stands as a prime example, having set ambitious goals to phase out fossil fuels entirely and achieve carbon neutrality by 2045, which involves substantial investments in renewable energy sources such as wind and solar power. Similarly, New Zealand has committed to transitioning to 100% renewable energy by 2035, signaling its determination to forsake fossil fuels in the energy sector.





With its abundant geothermal and hydroelectric resources, Iceland has achieved near-elimination of fossil fuels in electricity production, setting a noteworthy example. Germany has embarked on an ambitious energy transition known as the "Energiewende," with objectives that include phasing out nuclear energy by 2022 and significantly reducing reliance on coal and other fossil fuels.

#### ADVANTAGES AND CHALLENGES IN DEVELOPING COUNTRIES

In economically disadvantaged countries, the landscape surrounding nuclear energy exhibits distinct advantages and challenges compared to wealthier nations. On the positive side, nuclear power offers a means of achieving lower carbon emissions, which can be pivotal in addressing climate change and facilitating sustainable development. Furthermore, it provides a reliable source of electricity, a fundamental requirement for economic growth.

Nevertheless, poorer nations encounter formidable challenges when adopting nuclear energy. One of the foremost obstacles is the high initial capital costs associated with constructing nuclear power plants. These financial burdens can be prohibitive for countries with limited resources. Additionally, developing and maintaining atomic infrastructure necessitates substantial technical expertise, which may be lacking in some economically disadvantaged regions.

Lastly, safety concerns, particularly those associated with the operation of nuclear facilities, remain a significant challenge for poorer nations. Managing the risks posed by accidents and nuclear waste can be particularly complex for countries with limited resources and capacity.

#### ACCESSIBILITY OF FOSSIL FUELS

Fossil fuels remain a prevalent energy source in many poor regions due to their accessibility and affordability. In these areas, fossil fuels are often readily available and established as the primary energy source due to their cost-effectiveness and the infrastructure supporting their use. The transition away from fossil fuels in these regions presents a unique set of challenges, as initial investments in alternative energy sources like nuclear power or renewables can be substantial.

In summary, nuclear energy's advantages and disadvantages vary in economically disadvantaged regions, with high capital costs, technical challenges, and safety concerns posing notable hurdles. Fossil fuels maintain accessibility and affordability, making them a prevalent energy source in these areas. Transitioning away from fossil fuels in poor nations may require international collaboration and support to address these challenges and promote sustainable energy alternatives.





#### **INITIATIVES AND PROGRESS**

<u>Low-Carbon Emissions</u> Nuclear power is a low-carbon energy source that does not produce greenhouse gases during electricity generation. As a result, it has the potential to play a significant role in reducing carbon emissions and combating climate change.

Existing Nuclear Power Plants Many countries have had operational nuclear power plants for decades. These plants provide a stable and reliable source of electricity, contributing to energy security.

<u>Advanced Reactor Technologies</u> Research and development efforts are underway to advance nuclear reactor technologies. New designs, such as small modular reactors (SMRs) and Generation IV reactors, aim to improve safety, efficiency, and waste management.

<u>Public and Private Investments</u> Some countries and private companies invest in nuclear energy to diversify their energy mix and reduce dependence on fossil fuels. These investments reflect a growing interest in nuclear power as a viable alternative.

<u>International Cooperation</u> Various international collaborations focused on sharing knowledge and best practices in nuclear energy. These partnerships aim to promote safe and responsible atomic technology deployment globally.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Nuclear energy presents both opportunities and challenges as an alternative to fossil fuels. Its low carbon emissions make it an attractive option for combating climate change and meeting growing energy demands. However, safety, waste management, cost, public perception, and competition from renewables must be addressed to ensure its sustainable deployment. Continued research, international collaboration, and transparent dialogue with the public are essential for fostering a responsible and informed approach to using nuclear energy in the global energy transition. It is up to you, the delegates, to find common ground between fossil fuels, atomic energy, and maybe even a new one. In this committee, you will try to find a solution for the issues raised in the study guide and try to reach an agreement within your committee regarding energy sources.

## **QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER**

1. How does your country view the potential of nuclear energy as an alternative to fossil fuels in addressing environmental concerns and reducing carbon emissions?





- 2. What strategies is your country considering to balance the advantages of nuclear energy, such as its low carbon emissions, with the potential risks associated with nuclear power plants?
- 3. How does your country plan to ensure nuclear safety and prevent catastrophic incidents like the Chernobyl and Fukushima disasters?
- 4. Could you elaborate on your country's approach to managing and disposing of radioactive waste generated by nuclear power plants in a safe and environmentally responsible manner?
- 5. Considering public concerns and skepticism about nuclear energy, what measures is your country taking to foster public trust and address perceptions related to safety and accidents?
- 6. Considering the economic landscape and competition from renewable energy sources, how does your country plan to make nuclear energy economically competitive and viable for sustainable energy production?

## **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

Background to the issue, Harvard T.H. Chan- <a href="https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/c-change/subtopics/fossil-fuels-health/">https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/c-change/subtopics/fossil-fuels-health/</a>

Dangerous of nuclear power plants, National Cancer Institute- <a href="https://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/causes-prevention/risk/radiation/nuclear-accidents-fact-sheet">https://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/causes-prevention/risk/radiation/nuclear-accidents-fact-sheet</a>

Nuclear energy clean and sustainable, office of nuclear energy-https://www.

energy.gov/ne/articles/3-reasons-why-nuclear-clean-and-sustainable

initiatives and progress, world's nuclear association- <a href="https://world-nuclear.org/nuclear-essentials/how-can-nuclear-combat-climate-change.aspx">https://world-nuclear.org/nuclear-essentials/how-can-nuclear-combat-climate-change.aspx</a>

https://inis.iaea.org/collection/NCLCollectionStore/ Public/54/091/54091862.pdf?r=1

Wood, Michael Burke. Nuclear energy: technology. In *Encyclopedia of energy engineering and technology*, v. 2. Boca Raton, FL, CRC Press, c2007. p. 1125-1133 TJ 163.2.E385 2007 <SciRR